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INTRODUCTION

The following study of the Willson-Walker House of Lex-
ington, Virginia, will examine the building through several
avenues of investigation and documentation. Records located
in the Rockbridge County Courthouse were used in establishing
the date of construction, chain of title, and probate inventory
of the first owner. Pertinent excerpts from these documents
are found in Appendices A, B, and C. Information gathered from
books, magazine articles, local newspapers and personal inter-
views afford a brief introduction to some of those who lived in
the Willson-Walker House.

These and other sources were most important in allowing the
architectural description of the structure to be expanded to in-
clude a conjectural reconstruction of the 1820 home of William
Willson. Measured drawings of the current floor plans of the
first and second floors were made as well as possible original
floor plans. These are found in Appendix D.

The Neoclassical Revival temple form of this house in many
ways reflects the thoughts and feelings, the spirit, of not only
early provincial Lexington but early 19th C. America as well.

An increasingly literate and patriotic populace was forming whose,
enthusiastic citizens, often harried and
perplexed by the thronging problems that
surrounded the birth of a new nation, more
and more turned back to ancient Rome (the
mother of republics as of empires) and to
ancient Greece (the country whose greatness
came through her democratic city states) for
inspiration and for comfort. Those ancient

peoples had flowered and prospered; so
should America. The classic world thus be-
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came, first, an inspiration; second, a

refuge; third, a sort of marvelous vision

of a Golden Age.1
As will be discussed later, William Willson was apparently a
well read man and a man of high standing in the community. No
records have been found which document exactly why he chose
this new, highly nationalistic style of architecture for his
residence. One can only surmise that Willson was cognizant of
the efforts of leaders such as Thomas Jefferson who actively
promoted the Roman temple as a new architectural form symbol-
ically fit for the new American republic. The rather provin-
cial treatment given some of the classical forms and details,
especially when compared with Jefferson's Monticello and the
pavillions of the University of Virginia, is only to be expected
given Lexington's remoteness and unfamiliarity with classical
forms.

Architectural pattern-books played an important role in

the design and execution of many late 1gth and 19Th C. homes and
manor houses. Examples are presented from various pattern-books
which may have been in Lexington prior to 1820 and available to
either Willson or to professional builders. John Jordan and
Samuel Darst were two such men who had formed a partnership in
1815. Jordan's own home, built in 1818, was certainly one of
the first Neoclassical Revival structures west of the Blue Ridge

and may well have provided a prototype for the Willson-Walker

House. This will be discussed more fully in the third section

of this study.

A fourth and final look at the house will deal not with its

.



past, but rather with the immediate present and near future.
The @;}lson—waiker House is an important»and v;tglwelement af
the Historic District of downtown Lexington. The character and
integrity of the streetscape surrounding the house has been
steadily improving for several years. The role the Willson-
Walker House is to play in furthering this revitalization should
be of no little concern. The structure is nearing a critical
junction. No action will produce a slow but ever accelerating
decline in the structural fabric of the building; stabilization
will produce just that, the static non-involvement of a poten-
tially dynamic building; or a program of restoration, however
slow and halting at first, could be started. It lies within
the realm of possibility that a faithful restoration undertaken
with care and imagination could be fiscally responsible, com-
mercially successful, and would recreate one of Lexington's

finer buildings.
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HISTORICAL DESCRIPTION

The Willson-Walker House (Figs. 1 & 2), situated at 30
North Main Street, Lexington, Virginia, (location #15 of Pléte
1) was built in 1820 by William Willson. The building stands
on a portion of lot #18 of the original town grid as it was
surveyed by James McDowell at the founding of Lexington in 1778.
Plate 2 shows the plat as it was drawn in 1787.

A title search was carried back to the purghase of a
house and lot by William Willson from Dr. Samuel L. Campbell.
The deed of March 13, 1815, DB J-212, states that William Will-
son was at that time residing on the property. Willson, also
known as Capt. Willson, was a prominent merchant of Lexington
and in 1803 had been elected treasurer of nearby Washington
College, a position he held until his death in 1840.2 Tax re-
cords indicate little activity on the property until 1820 when
a structure valued at $1450 was erected. This structure would
have been what is now the Willson-Walker House. Capt. Willson
was also postmaster of Lexington during the early 19th ¢, and
was saild to have "kept his office in a small brick building
where J. McDadair's dwelling now is."3 This building may be
located on an 1889 plat (Plate 3) which accompanied a deed found
in DB 53-173; and also on an 1845 plat (Plate 4) in which it is
described as simply the "Back Brick House". One might conject
that this building was the earlier house on the lot; that when
Willson moved into his new home of 1820 he turned this smaller

house into a post office; and after his death in 1840, his wife
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1. Sloan House (1844—45) and Campbell
House (1844-45)

2. The Castle (c. 1790)

3. Davidson-Tucker House (1888)

4. Stonewall Jackson House (1801)

5. County Jail (1839-41) and adjoining
buildings

6. County Courthouse (1897)
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7. Dold Building (1820, 1826)

8. Alexander-Withrow Building (c. 1789)
9. Central Hotel (1809-57)

10. Jacob M. Ruft House (c. 1829)

11. John Ruftf House (1811)

12. Sheridan Livery Stable (1887)

19, First Baptist Church (1896)

14. 'Troubadour Theatre (1853)

PLATE 1
Map of Historic Downtown
Lexington

15.
16.
17.
18.
19.
20.

Willson-Walker House (1820) ="
Washington Street Row (1891)

Bear Building (c. 1828)

Brown House (c. 1840s)

Lexington Presbyterian Church (184
Nelson Street Row (late 1800s)
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bought it from the estate and turned it back into a residence.
The other brick building referred to as "Smalo" (sic.) in the
1845 plat and as "Store" in the 1889 plat was standing by at
least 1838 when in a classified advertisement, Willson offers
a house "with columns and a piazza in front, say 14 by 16 feet;
and House 36 by 45 feet, covered with zinc; the carpenter's and
brick work of the best quality; on said lot there is an Ice
House, Smoke House, Kitchen, Stable and Carriage House --- also,
two other small Brick buildings and an excellent garden". (Plate 5)

William Willson died in 1840 and the probate inventory
taken, WB 9-52, gives the indication that Capt. Willson was in-
deed a man of means. His estate became entangled in a chancery
cause until a public auction was ordered April 15, 1845. At
that time Willson's widow, Susan, bought the two smaller brick
houses and the lot was divided. The "mansion house and lot"%
was not sold because of insufficient bidding. A second auction
was held in 1847 and the property sold to James G. Paxton.
Paxton had been a member of the Board of Visitors of V.M.I.,
1845-1846, and went on to be a member of both the Virginia House
and Senate before entering the Confederate Army as a Major.

The property passed to Calvin McCorkle in 1863, Alexander

Glasgow in 1868, J.S. LaRowe in 1889, L.D. Hamric in 1906, and

oy

~finally Harry L. Walker in 1911. Shortly after his purchase,

Walker made extensive renovations to the exterior facade and
ground floor to convert the building from a residence to a meat

market and grocery. Walker sold the rear portion of the lot in



PLATE 5

Advertisement of Willson-
Walker House, 1838
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1919 and the property assumed the boundries it still possesses.
Upon Walker's death in 1942, the building was willed to his
daughter Mrs. C.I. Wood. lMrs. Wood made further modifipatiéns
in 1960 and conve?téd‘the éé&énd éfory into apartments. The
Willson-Walker House remains in Mrs. Wood's possession and con-
tinues to house a business, the White Column Inn Restaurant, on
the first floor with apartment rentals on the second floor.
Appendix A contains the chain of title from 1815 to 1942,
Also included are tax records of the property from 1813 to 1828,
(Appendix B) and a partial listing of the 1840 probate inventory

of the estate of Capt. William Willson. (Appendix C)
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ARCHITECTURAL DESCRIPTION

The Willson-Walker House (Figs. 1 & 2) is an excellent
example of an early Illeoclassical Revival domestic design, which
still retains many earlier Federal motifs. The structure is
basically a side-passage, two-thirds four-over-four rectangle
oriented gable-end toward the street. The front facade is com-
posed of a moderately pitched, pedimented, frame gable extending
ten feet from the brick wall with a delicate elliptical pediment
window centered in a flush, vertical board, wooden tympanum.

The cornice 1is cérried on a simple cushion frieze supported by
four elongated giant Tuscan orders of plastered brick resting on
raised masonry pedestals.

The front fenestration of the second story (Fig. 3) consists
of three bays; a central six-over-six double-hung-sash window
with delicate muntins and thin rail, and two doors. A heavy
bolection molding forms the exterior surround on this, and all
other, original windows of the building. All originial window
sills are simple rectangular wooden members with a slight cham-
fer on the leading edge and pegged at each end to the window
frame. Flanking this central window are two doors; the top two-
thirds consisting of twelve lights which duplicate the central
window, and the lower third having a wide lock rail and bottom rail
with two square raised panels between. Both door jambs have a
fine attenuated Federal-style paneling which spans the width of
the brick wall. The doors, hung on the inner edge of the jamb,

give access to a full width wooden-floored porch supported by
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the four Tuscan columns. The porch has a plastered shallow
tray ceiling, and is enclosed by a balustrade with a rounded
handrail supported on plain rectangular balusters. Emphasié

is given to the central span by two symmetrically placed turned
newels (Fig. 4). The capitals of the orders (Fig. 5) have an
abacus set back from the plane of the narrow architrave with a
simple provincial Tuscan echinus and necking. The porch and
wall facade appear to be original and in good condition.

The first story front wall facade is much altered from the
original (First Floor Plan and First Floor Plan, Restored; Ap-
pendix D). There are now three bays consisting of two entrances
and two windows (Fig. 1). The original entrance bay had, most
likely, a paneled door flanked by two attenuated vernacular adap-
tations of the Corinthian order. Finely fluted, the shafts rest
on moderately correct bases, which in turn sit on an awkward
blocky plinth (Fig. 6). The shafts terminate at the top with
a necking and carved leaves (Fig. 7) which carry a cornice. The
cornice extends out from the capitals and then drops back into
the wall to frame the doorway (Fig. 8). Above the cornice is a
fanlight (Fig. 8) which incorporates a delicate heart motif.
Surrounding the orders and fanlight is a round wooden arch with
paneled soffit (Fig. 8), and a scotia cross-section with the in-
side edge articulated by a carved rope molding (Fig. 6). Above
the wooden arch is a brick relieving arch. Also contained in
the doorway is a transom, now concealed by an exhaust fan (Fig.8).

The space this transom occupies was created by a lowering of the
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Capital of Corinthian Crder




door during the 1911 renovation. This lowering also accounts
for the awkward termihation of the Corinthian orders (Fig. 1).

The current owner, Mrs., C.W. Wood, has a photograph taken
in 1911 just prior to the renovation. It shows the door in its
proper place, immediately beneath the cornice. The plinthes
of the Corinthian orders rest upon what remains of the old door
sill. The door opened upon a wooden porch which extended out
the same distance as the one above and tied into the pedestals
so that the top of the porch floor was about six inches below
the columns' base (Fig. 9). A balustrade extended around the
porch and was identical to the upper one, save that the turned
newels were positioned to the south end of the porch to frame a
side entry. Brick infill set back several inches spanned be-
tween the pedestals. By leaving a series of voids, several dia-
mond-shaped air vents were incorporated in the first and third
spans. Both this infill and the side entry onto the porch were
of a mid-19th ¢, origin.

The extreme height of the porch from the level of the
sidewalk was a result of the lowering of the street, and con-
sequentially the sidewalk, by the Town of Lexington in the
early 1850's. This was done in order to ease the transport of
goods from the canal docks of near-by North River to mid-town.
Prior to this time, entrance to the porch would doubtlessly
have been on axis with the front door and passage. After the
lowering, entry was gained by means of steps to the south end

of the porch, and bricks were used to fill between the now ex-
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posed foundations of the columns.

Again from the photograph, one may see that the front
middle and north bays were composed of windows identical to;
and centered beneath, the upper central window and north door.
Ghosts of the two jack arches are still visible. These windows,
as were all other windows visible in the photograph, were
flanked by louvered blinds.

In 1911, the bhalustrade and porch were removed and a new
porch level, directly accessible to the sidewalk, was formed of
poured concrete. The main door was lowered and a one-over-one
double-hung-sash window placed immediately to the south of the
wooden arch. To the north of the old doorway the porch floor
was dropped a step. The middle window was removed and a double
door beneath a glass transom installed. The individual doors
are of a simple early 20th C, commercial style with one long
rectangular light over a single wooden panel. The northern win-
dow was removed and a one-over-one double-hung-sash (now es-
sentially fixed) display window installed.

The south wall fenestration (Fig. 10) consists of three
windows and a doorway. The two upper windows are identical to
the middle front window, six-over-six double-hung-sash. These
were probably placed so as to illuminate one upstairs chamber
and a large upstairs passage (Second Floor Plan, Restored; Ap-
pendix D). A first story window is centered beneath the south-
east upper window and although covered, is undoubtly similar to

the others. Ornate cast-iron pintels still remain in the

sila
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bolection surrounds of these windows. Near ground level and
off-center of these windows 1s the remains of a jack arch and
wooden lintel -- the top of a crawl space ventilator since cov-
ered over with earth. Another such ghost in a similar position
is found on the north wall. The doorway is placed in such a
fashion that it is unlikely it was ever a window opening and
certainly not an original door opening. Therefore, it is as-
sumed that this doorway dates from no earlier than 1911 when
access to the upper quarters needed to be separate from the com-
mercial space of the first floor.

The rear, or west, wall (Fig. 11) contains the most vernac-
ular treatment of the original wall fenestrations. At present

it displays a hodge-podge of forms and functions. A typical

‘six-over-six double-hung-sash window to the far south and mid-

way up the wall lights the first stair landing. The third stair
landing has a smaller six-over-six window. Although smaller and
off-center to the interior stair landing, it was still found
necessary to notch into the tapered rake board. This awkward
bit of carpentry is expressed on the interior by having the
window surround of this same corner disappear ten inches into
the sloped stair landing ceiling. The top of this window is
level with the bottom of the Roman bath window, but otherwise
neither stair well window is oriented to any other feature of
the wall.

The Roman bath window (Fig. 12), centered in the brick

gable, 1is composed of two fan-shaped windows hinged to a center

. i
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mullion (Fig. 13). By using this mullion as a centerline, one
finds symmetry and balance to the north side of the wall; and
asymﬁetry, but perhaps a dynamic balance, to the south side.

To the north are two typical six-over-six windows, with two
others centered directly beneath on the first story, but hidden
by later additions and walls. These lower windows differ by
having fine paneled jambs (Fig. 14), which angle inward slightly
toward the sash. To the south of the central mullidn is another
second story window (Fig. 11) which although at the same level
as the others, is more closely set than the first two. The dis-
tance between this third window and the middle, or second, win-
dow is equal to the space between the third window and the first
stair landing window. The north frame of the third window falls
directly beneath the southmost point of the Roman bath window
frame, and beneath the south frame of the third window was cen-
tered the rear door. The rear doorway had an arched frame and

a fanlight. The available evidence for this is a rounded piece
of exterior flashing (Fig. 15), and the memory of Mrs. C.M. Wood.
The door was hinged on the outer surface of the wall and had
paneled jambs which still exist (Fig. 16). At one time, after
1845 (Plate 4) and prior to 1889 (Plate 3), this doorway may
have led to a back porch which extended from the back of the
house to approximately the southeast corner of a still detached
kitchen. ©Such an arrangement appears on Grey's New Map of Lex-
ington published in 1877 (Plate 7); a still vacant flashing

joint exists at what would have been a proper porch roof height;
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and the wall beneath this joint has a fresher appearance as
though it had been sheltered for a period of timé.

A single story hyphen (Figs. 11 & 17) now connects the
rear wall of the house and east wall of the kitchen. It may
have been built as early as 1889, since the plat of Plate 5
does not show a detached building, but simply one unit. At
any rate, the hyphen is of two separate parts, the southern
frame half providing a powder room and bathroom for the restau-
rant; and an earlier, brick northern part providing access to
the kitchen through an exterior door.

The kitchen is a single pile, one-over-one plan, on axis
with the main house, having a large external chimney at the
western end and a steeply pitched gable roof (Figs. 17 & 18).
Windows were smaller and originally six-over-nine double-hung-
sash., There were two such windows on the south wall; two small
four light casement windows on the west gable end; one central
window on the north wall which originally matched those of the
south wall, but has since been modified with a smaller bottom
sash; and one central upper window in the east gable-end. An
off-center doorway was in the lower east wall and a quarter-
turn-with-winders stairway gave access to the upstairs. The
small upstairs fireplace remains intact, but the downstairs
cooking fireplace is totally covered. Save for a chair-rail
at window sill height, little of the original flooring or in-
terior remains. Molded brick forms the cornice beneath a metal

roof (Fig. 19).
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The north wall of the main house (Fig. 18) contains three
windows which probably conformed with the other windows origi-
nally but which are now considerably smaller. The upper win-
dows, six-over-six double-hung-sash, are placed closely together
on both sides of what is thought to be an original upstairs
wall. They would thus illuminate the interior corner of each
chamber on that side of the house (Second Floor Plan, Restored;
Appendix D). One corresponding window appears on the first
story and is a single light, casement window of an obviously
later date, probably 1911. There has been extensive brickwork
about all three windows and also about the doorway of the north
wall. There may have been an original window sitwated there in
the same relative position to the dining room fireplace as the
other window to the hall fireplace. This doorway could have
been installed after the 1851 street lowering to provide easier
ground-level access; or whenever the north end of the hyphen
was added to provide better access to the kitchen. :

Few details remain intact of the first floor interior
(First Floor Plan and First Floor Plan, Restored; Appendix D).
The front half of the passage wall and hall doorway have been
removed. All flooring and floor structural systems have been
removed and the floor lowered. The wall between the dining
room and hall has been replaced by a non-structural walk-in
cooler wall. The ceilings have all been lowered, thus covering
the front and rear fanlights. The south wall window has been

covered over and salvage floor boards used to close off the

=14=



stairway except to an outside entrance. What had been the
dining room has been sub-divided into restroom, kitchen, and
walk-in cooler. The dining room windows and fireplace havé
been walled over. Only in the bathroom and the crawl space
above the kitchen may one see the quality of the fluted window
architrave with its bulls-eye corner blocks and paneled jambs
(Figs. 14 & 20). The architraves of both front and back doors
are somewhat different. Here a stylistic Greek order is cre-
ated with block plinth, fluted shaft, bulls-eye capital and
molding cornice (Figs. 16, 21, & 22). Original raised paneling
with chair-rail may be seen near the front door (Fig. 22). An
original panel door, two small panels over two-over-two larger
panels, still gives access to a closet beneath the stairs. A
short section of paneling still connects this door to the rear
door (Fig. 16).

The original hall is now the main lobby of the White Column
Inn Restaurant (Fig. 23). A rubble stone foundation beneath the
small l9th C. fireplace gives an example of the extent to which
the floor was lowered (Fig. 24). HMrs. C.M. Wood recalls that
prior to the 1911 renovation, both the hall and dining room fire-
places had marble mantels. She also remembers the passage
having a large wooden arch which would have divided it into an

entrance lobby and stair hall. In Mrs. McCulloch's Stories of

Ole Lexington, Mrs. McCulloch remembers the "beautiful carving"

in the Glasgow (Willson-Walker) House and how "all that beautiful

woodwork, I understood, was sold. It was carved by hand, the
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pillars and the hall and all".?

On the stairs between the first and second landings, one
may fina sawn step-ends (Fig. 25), fret-work (Fig. 26), and.
raised paneling with a chair-rail (Fig. 27). Simple, but grace-
ful turned newels reminiscent of classical orders, complete with
entasis (Fig. 28), carry the plain handrail at each landing
(Fig. 29). The step-ends of the final flight and a half be-
come less complex (Fig. 30), the raised paneling ends at the
second landing with the chair-rail continuing to the third land-
ing over a very plain board paneling. The architrave and corner
block of the second story windows become slightly less ornate,
and on the window of the third landing the surround is simply
mitered (Fig. 31). Two small turned pendants decorate the bot-
toms of the newel posts on the third stair landing (Fig.32). f
As the result of an apparent miscalculation, the top eight
inches of the terminal newel post is lost through the sloping
ceiling of the stair well.

Within the northwest chamber was a built-in cupboard which
still retains one of its original doors, again the two-over-two-
over-two motif of the larger paneled doors (Fig. 33). Only one
other original paneled door was found in place on the second floor.

The attic consists of three roughly equal rooms divided by
beaded, vertical pine board walls with batten doors. Each room
has knee-walls, sloped sides, and a low flat ceiling (fig. 34).,
Entrance is gained by a low door advanced slightly into the room

from the plane of the knee-wall and several steps above the third

~18=
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stair landing. All original plaster is over split-board lath
(Fig. 35). The front pediment window and Roman bath window may
be clearly examined (Figs. 13, 36, & 37). Prior to a 1975 re-
roofing, a single, original dormer on the south face of the roof
gave light and ventilation to the middle attic room. The three
inch common rafters are mortised and tenoned and pegged at the
peak. These rafters carry wide pine boards of the sub-roof

and terminate at a false plate carried on the floor joist ends
which are angled to continue the pitch of the roof. No evidence
was avallable to determine if the attic space had once been used
as a living quarters.

The roof covering on both the main house and kitchen is
metal and has been so on the main house since at least 1838
(refer to Plate 5). Two tall narrow chimneys rise from within
the north brick wall. There were certainly two fireplaces on
the lower floor and from the probate inventory one assumes two
fireplaces on the second floor. The photograph of 1911 also
shows a chimney and the single dormer rising above the south-
eastern roofline. Mo trace now remains, both original elements
having been removed during the re-roofing.

The brick of the front facade' is laid in Flemish bond with
the back and side walls in four course American bond. The
first story walls are twelve inches thick, decreasing to eight
inches thick for the second story. All walls are laid on a
sixteen to eighteen inch limestone rubble foundation. The front

wall has been painted many times so any original decorative work

-17-
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with glazed headers is impossible to discern. All brick is
hand made with molded brick being used only as a simple cornice
at the eves of both the main house and kitchen (Fig. 19). The
brick was originally laid in a typically soft burnt lime and
sand mortar in a competent fashion, and the joints penciled.
Glazed headers are scattered about in usually the upper third

of the walls with no appareﬁt decorative devices attempted.
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POSSIBLE SOURCES OF DESIGN AND DETAIL

The design of the Willson-Walker House is one which was
becoming very popular in the early 19th ¢., that of the Neo;
classical Revival. The clarity of the High and Late Georgian
designs and the sophistication of the Federal style had given
way to a desire of the new country to find its own national
style of architecture. As in all architectural styles, the

forms of the new were not totally embraced nor the forms of
the o0ld totally discarded.

A specific source of the style and detailing of the Will-
son-Walker House would be impossible to pinpoint. However,
there are twéwareas worthy of exploration: late 18t ¢, and
early 19th C. pattern-books which may have been used by Capt.
Willson to design his own house and supervise its construction;
or the availability of Lexington builder-architects such as the
team of John Jordan and Samuel Darst.

Capt. Willson, obviously a capable man, was a successful
merchant, postmaster of Lexington, and Treasurer of Washington
College for thirty-seven years. He was also a very well read
man. His probate inventory lists ten volumes of Shakespeare
in his personal library at the time of his death in 1840.
Willson was also a member of the "Lexington Library Company"
and was recorded present at the earliest known meeting in 1801.6
This Company spent the sizable sum of $150 the first year to
acquire books and continued adding to their collection for the

next twenty vears. At that point the Company dissolved and

-19-
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many of the volumes were bought by another Lexington organiza-
tion, The Franklin Society.”

The Franklin Society, or as it was incorporated in 1816,
"The Franklin Society and Library Company"8 was begun about
1800 or possibly as early as 1795, operating under various
names until, "In August, 1811, by overwhelming vote the members

adopted the name of America's greatest diplomat, Benjamin Frank-

lin. The name suggests usefulness, seriousness, intellectuality,

and above all, patriotism."? Although primarily a debating
society, The Franklin Society also gave a great deal of energy
to literary and scientific pursuits. Books were donated to the
society by members and friends until in 1813 thirty-eight vol-
umes were purchased. During a period from about 1811 to the
early 1820's these books of the Franklin Society were kept in
the hatter's shop of Mr. John Ruff.1l0 7This shop happened to be
just across Main Street from the residence of William Willson.
Capt. Willson may or may not have been a member of the Franklin
Society, but one might imagine that he did have access to the
libary across the street, as well as to the library of his own
Lexington Library Company. A catalog of the volumes contained
in these two libraries prior to 1820 has not been located.

However, Owen Biddle's Young Carpenter's Assistant (1810) is

known to have been in Lexington about this time.l1
The following are plates from publications which Capt.
Willson may have seen and which may have influenced his choice

in the motifs, design and details of his home:

-20-
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Batty Langley in The Builder's Director, 1751, gave help-

ful hints in Plate 8 on making proper pediments; in Plate 9 on
a proper Corinthian capital, although Fig. 7 shows little evi-
dence of it being followed; in Plate 10 on how to produce a
cavette such as that used in the wooden arch (Fig. 6) and the
cornice above (Fig. 7); and a much simplified Tuscan order is
given in Plate 11.

Abraham Swan in his The British Architect of 1758, shows

the Tuscan order in great detail in Plates 12 and 13 (Figs. 5
& 9); the Corinthian order in Flate 14 (Figs. 6 & 7); as well
as how to flute}}hf §haft in Plate 15.
_Charles Bulf?igéh,ﬂwgrking out of Boston in the late 18th
C. and early 19£h C. helped to popularize the attenuated delicate
Federal tabernacle doorways with rich round-headed fanlights.
Plates 16, 17, and 18 are examples of such doorways. Etchings
or engravings of doorways like this may have made their way
into publications that reached Lexington.

An associate of Bullfinch, Asher Benjamin, was a prolific
American pattern-book author. Elements found both in his works
and 1in the Willson-Walker House are the following: The six
panel door from Plate 19 and Fig. 33; the six-over-six double-
hung-sash window of Plate 20 and Fig. 3; the top of the newel

from Plate 21 and I'ig. 28 are all from The Country Builder's

Assistant, 1805. The six-over-six window and paneled jamb of
Plate 22 and Figs. 14 & 16; modified Corinthian capital of Plate

23 and Fig. 7; water leaf of Plate 24 and Fig. 7; newel of Plate

_21-
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@ TUJSCUAN Order. s resmmmor

AN Y Height being given for this Order,

Let 1t be divided into nine cqual Parts, as is
{thewn up the Side of the Co/umn.

Bohivet Frpger’ Comices

-

Then, oncof thefe Parts is the Diamescr of the
Column at its Bafe; fcven Parts are given to the
Shaft, or Body of the Column, including the Pafe
and Capiral; dnd two to its LEntablature, which
includes the Architrave, Freeze, and Cornice.

Having found the Diameter of the Columi at
1ts Ba/e,

Let 1t be divided into four cqual Parts, as in
@ Prark I Thendivide one of thefc into twelve,
which is done thus;

éﬁJ%faéﬁ&y@gdhma
& Disamotars

Take the Extent of one of thefe four Parts,
and fet 1t from A to B; then fet your Compaflesat
Pleafure, and run twelve Divifions, as on the Line
B C; from the Extent of thefe Divifions draw a
Line to A ; when thefe Divifions are {quared up

from the Bafe Line, that is, drawing the Perpen-
diculars 1, 2, 3, & your Scale is made, and the
Line A B is divided into twelve equal Parts; as
would eafily appear by drawing Parallels from cach
of thefe Perpendiculars to A B.

Bt
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PLATE 12
Tuscan Order
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CORINTHI AN Order.

. ANY Hcight bcing givcn for this Order,

7 F

: >

S

|

Let 1t be divided into twelve cqual Parts, as 1s

- {bewn up the Side of the Columa,

[.701'421
s dart &

One of them is the Diameter of the Column at
the Bafe; Ten Parts are given to the Shafs, in-
cluding the Bafe and Capital; and two to the En-

tablature.

|
1

The Capital in this Order is one Diameter and
a fixth Part.

This PLATE al{o exhibits another Cornice largcr
than that fixed to the Profile, but yct is not near o

large, as that which Vignola has given to his Co-

| rinthian.
i

7 sty

 Tis not neceffary to fay any more of the Propor-
‘ tions, the Meafures being fet to the refpective Parts.

F D iarnetas

PLATE XII Shews the different Parts of
the Capital.

F1a. 1. Shews the Pieces glued upon the Di-
agongl.

Frc. . Shews the Cavital viewed Angle-ways,
with Part of the naked Be// of the Cap.

Frc. L Reprefents the Body of the Capizal,
with fome of the Blocks glued ony Fia. I, at
the upper Corner to the Left thows how much the
Capital fhould taper, at each Side, fince feven and

an Half on the other Side is fcarce fufficient for the
Plan of the Abacus.

F16. IV. Shews the Capizal, with all the Mea-

© {ures of the Height ; Width, and Proje&tion fet to
| every Part,

PLATE 14
Corinthian Crder
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DESIGN FOR A CITY HOUSI

From the original drawing made after 1800

FLATE 17
Design of Building -

DORIC HALL, SHOWING SOUTIH DOOR

TLATE 18
Doric Hall
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25 and Fig. 28; Tuscan order of Plate 26 and Figs. 5 & 9; and
examples of fashionable six paneled doors and fanlights of Plate

27 are all from The American Builder's Companion, 1806. Thé

The newel of Plate 28 and Fig. 4; and examples of doorways from

Plate 29 are from The Rudiments of Architecture, 1814.

And finally Owen Biddle's The Young Carpenter's Assistant,

1810, which was in Lexington, has the cavette and newel of Plate
30 and Figs. 6, 7, & 4; the method of treating a handrail and
step-ends of Plate 31 and Figs. 29 & 25; and an excellent ex-
ample of a tabernacle doorway in Plate 32.

The other likely, and far more probable, source for the

design and detailing, however provincial, of the Neoclassical

_Revival style of the Willson-Walker House is in the personage

%Ef,JQhQ»JQ?da?f Jordan came to Lexington around 1800 at the

age of twenty-three and was soon working as a brickmaker and
bricklayer. Some have credited the brickwork of Mulberry Hill
(c. 1801), a late Georgian style house just outside of Lexington,

12 By late 1805, correspondence between Jordan and

to Jordan.
Thomas Jefferson shows that Jordan had just completed some brick-
work at Monticello. Here Jordan would have had a chance to ob-
serve such Jeffersonian design features as the round arches

with fanlights of the east entrance (Plate 33); the classical
Tuscan temple portico of the front entrance (Plate 34); or the
simple carved step-ends and newel pendant of a stairway at

Monticello (Plate 35 and Figs. 30 & 32).

In 1811, Jordan joined the Rockbridge county militia and

-0
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Urn and Moldings
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served in eastern Virginia. While near Richmond he may well
have taken the opportunity to see Jefferson's Neoclassical
state capital.

Somewhat later, during the initial construction of the
lawn of the University of Virginia, Jordan was "a frequent
visitor at Belmont, a country home near Charlottesville, then
owned by his brother-in-law, John Winn I11."13 No record is
available that Jordan was actually involved with the building
of the campus. However, he was certainly aware of the devel-
opments there. Judge Archibald Stuart of Staunton in a letter
of March 9, 1819, to Thomas Jefferson accuses Jordan and his
business partner Samuel Darst of "conspiring to monoplize the
brickwork contracts for the building of the University of Vir-
ginia."lu

Jordan had obviously taken a great liking to the Roman
temple forms being promoted by Jefferson. This influence may
be clearly seen in Jordan's own Lexington home of Stono (Plate
36), built in 1818 and said to be "the earliest verified Neo-
classical structure west of the Blue Ridge."15 It has a Roman
temple form with tall slender Tuscan orders, double balustraded
porches, graceful pediment window, and delicate fanlight over
the entrance. Jordan and Darst later built Beaumont (Plate 37)
in 1824 which again has elongated Tuscan orders and double bal-
ustraded porches. Also, in 1824, they built Washington Hall
for Washington College. A conjectural drawing of the original

appearance (Plate 38) shows similar Tuscan orders and a second
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Beaumont

209. Humphreys's conjectural drawings of the original appearance and floor plan
of the center building

PLATE 38

- Conjectural Drawing of
Washington Hall



story porch with balustrade.

No record has been found linking the firm of Jordan and
Darst to the Willson-Walker House. There is, however, strbng
.circumstantial evidence. Jordan was familiar with the work at
the University of Virginia. Pavillion IV (Fig. 38) may have
provided a model for both Stono and the Willson-Walker House.
Details such as the Roman bath windows of Pavillion VI (Fig.
39), Pavillion VII (Fig. 40), and Pavillion X (Fig. 41) may
have provided ideas for the gable windows of the Willson-Walker
House. The 1820 date of the house falling between Stono of
1818, and Beaumont/Washington Hall of 1824; Eggether with a
remarkable similarity of motifs used in all four structures.
leads one to strongly suspect the hands of Jordan and Darst

in the building of the Willson-Walker House.
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Fig. 40
Roman Bath Window
PavillionyVII, Univ. of ¥a.

Fig. 41
Roman Bath Window
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